UNITED NATIONS § =

ECONOMIC emvEn:
AND ) T Derlaben 1966 .
SOCIAL COUNCIL aNGLISH

Original: FRENCH

Forty-first session

- SOCIAL LOMMITTER

SUMMARY RECORD OF THi FIVE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-FOURTH' MESTING

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on dednesday, 6 July 1966, at 3.25 p.m.

CONT.ANTS:

. -Organiz~tion of work

Slavery (item 25 of the Council agenda)

GE.66-17499 .
‘ 1 6P,




" EV/AC". 7/SR.534
page 2

“;.Present'

,:g
' Chalrmwn.'

- -
'_,Egmbers: Lo e

Algeria
Cameroﬁn
Canada
Chile
Czechoslovakia
... Beuador
: France
:f‘:éébon
{Greece
India
Igan | . .\
Iraq . » N
Luxembourg
Moroéco
Pakistan
Panama
- Peru
| Philippines
Romania

'Sweden

- United Kingdom
United States
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics

Venezuela

"  Al$o present:
 Mr. AWAD

'{ ;R§presentatives of spécialized agencies:

%L? ~;,-' . Taternational Labour Organisation

' Wofld Health Urganlzatlon

*b?;Representatlve of the
- United Nations Children's Fund:

' M;. SCHREIBER o

i T . ' : A\

e
" Mr. FERNANDINI (Peru)” "'

© Mr.

- Miss LUNS INGH'-'MEIJER

i Mr.K&Emmm%KIﬁ_;;%F_&ﬂﬂ;fw

A\

e 22

.
¥y
D 8

Mrs., SELLAMI

Mr. £TAME

Mr. DELISLE

CONTRERAS

JURZA

NAJERA

BOULLET

DAVIN e

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

~ Mrs. MANTZOULINOS
. Mr,, CHAND

i !h\." .'.
MrEiNABAVI Qo
,Mrs. AFNAN Coen
* MI‘-
Mr.

FILALI
NAIK

Mr. VARELA
Mr. SOLARI
Mr. UY

Mr. PREDESCO

(Mr. FORSHELL
(Mr., BERGQUIST

Sir Samuel HOARE
Mr. ELMENDORF
Mrs. KASTALSKAYA
Mr. RAPHAEL

Specialidepofteur'on Slavery

Mrs. FARMAN~FARMAIAN
Miss HOwELL

Sir Herbert BROADLEY -~ """~

.'Secretarlat'- ; _ _N_ﬂww;w».aﬁ,,,,¢ , |
; Dlrcctor, Division of Human nghts

;’ Secretary of the Commlttee

e



E/AC.7/SR.554
page 3

ORGANIZATION OF WORK

The CHATIRMAN:welcomed the members of the Committee and the representatives

of the Secrctariat, especially Mr. Schreiber, the new Director of the Division of
Human Rights. He stressed the very great importance of the Social Committee’s
work for the Council as a whole, the United Nations and world development. He
spurned the widespread b¢lief that the Social Committee devoted itself prlmarlly to
theoretical work and was of little practical importance; that failed te recognlze
its great humanitarian mission and the part.it played in the struggle against all
the evils 'born of injustice. In view of the urgency of the Committee's task and the
short time it had in which to complete a very vast programme, he urged members to
work efficiently and expeditiously. o

The Committee had instructions to examine items 17, 18 21, 22, 23, 24 and 25 of
the Councilfs agenda. It was proposed that items 17, 21, 23 and 25 should be
considered during the week from 5 to 8 July, items 17, 22 and 24 from 11 to iS July,
and items 17, ‘18 and 21 from 18 to 22 July.. .

It was so decided. .
SLAVERY (item 25 of the Council agenda) (B/4168 and Add.l - 5)

The CHAIRMAN asked the members of the Committee to consider the report

prepared by Mr. Mohamed Awad, Special Rapporteur on Slavery (5/4168 and 4dd.l - 5),
in accordance with resolutions 960 (XXXVI) and 1077 (XXXIX). The report Was based

on a fifteen-point questionnaire which had been sent to all Member States, and the

replies received were reproduced in it.  In July 1965 the Special Rapporteur had
submitted to the Council at its thirty-ninth session a report.which it had not been
possible to consider then for lack of time. He now asked Mr. Awad to int:oducé his
report. : : . i i o o A "_
Mr. AWAD (Special Rapporteur) introduced.his report on_slaveryé/which,r

he hbpéd, was more complete than that submitted the previous year. The iaﬁter had'
suffered from two main defects: first, it had not been possible, in the time évailébie, '
‘to have it circulated in all the working languages; and, secondly, less than half the
States Members of the United Nations had answered the questionaire on which the report
was to be based. The present report had been circulated in good time in all the work—-g
ing languages and the number of States which had answered the questionnaire had risen'
from fifty-one to seventy-five.. He would, of course, have liked to receive stlll more?‘

answers in order. to have as much 1nformat10n as possible at his dlspnsal.

The text of Mr. Awad's statement was subseqﬁently distributed uﬁder:thé'
symbol E/AC.7/L.485.



:"TD/AC 7/SR. 534
puge Ll'

| The Secretariat had circulated Council resclution 1077 (XXXIX)- to the Stites .
Members of "the vnited Nations," empha5121ng how 1mportant it was that all States
should reply to' the questlonnalre ‘das-soon as possible. The irabic translation he =
had had made Tor Arablc-speaklng countries had proved useful. A.breakdown, by -
continent, of the replies received revealed 'a considerable increase, 'in some continents,
in the humbér of countries replying to the questionnaire. ‘ L e e

In 1966 twd Meimber States - thd United States of America and the Union.of Soviet

boclallst Republlcs ~'had sent. supplementary replies. The new answer .from: the
. United’ States referred to questions -XII; XIII, XIV and XV, -which were of special
1mportance for thé chapter on suggestions for possible action by the United Nations.
»vUnfortunately, that answer had been received too late to be included in the elevant
chapter.' A special reference to it would therefore be made .when that chapter was
dlscussed. ' | '
: The report was' based entlrely upon the answers received from States Members  -of.
* the United Nations, members of the specialized agencies and non-governmental
"~ organizations in'consultative status, the same questionnaire having been. sent to all,
despite the fact that some of the questions were perhaps irrelevant in so.far as the
" specialized agencies and non-governmental organizations were conccrned.: Questions
‘kII, XIIT and XIV were of partlcular interest to those agencies and .organizations
:“whereas the whole questionnaire was of interest to all Member States even -though scme
‘i‘countrles were not, and never had been, even remotely concerned with the question of
 ;31avery.' Once the United Nations interested itself in a question, that question
ecame a matter of direct concern to every Member of the Organizatione.

' The number of replies received was not unsatisfactory; if 70 per cent of the
'bbtates Members had sent complete answers, a useful report could have been prepared.
Q.But the qulllty of the answers varled very greatly and in many cases left much to be
| de51red.. At the thlrty-nlnth se351on he had complained that some of the answers -were
Tm merely perfunctory. ,He huped, ‘however, to be able to make good use of the available
f»materlal.« ' o ” ' , .

| He again deplored the rather obvicus lack of interest discernible in, the answers
,l‘of the spec1allzed agen01es.‘* So many Member States referred in their answers “to the

'elmportance of the role of tnose ‘agencies that 1t wag difficult not toconclude that

ffhelr co—operatlon was 1ndlspensable. That co-operatlon might be achieved through
’the Admlnlstratlve Commlttee on Co-ordlnatlon (ACC) in»which all agenc1es were

3zrepresented and whlch met qulte often. LT : By




‘E/AC «7/SR.534
page 5 =

The questionnaire sent ‘to States Members comprised fifteen questions. The
first - question concerned the legislative, administrative or .other méasures States
had taken.to oombat slavery and institutions or practices similar to slavery.:

That questlon was not concerned with the existence of slavery; it dealt with the
legal position, and the administrative measures applied in the matter of slavery.

It had been.fully answered by many Member States, nearly all of which had given
detailed .descriptions of their legislative-and administrative measures. In some
cases, -the prohibition of slavery was mentioned in the very Constitution of - the
State, as well as being the subject of legal and administrative measures. Many

of those legal provisions dated back to the previous centﬁry and some had been -
repeatedly. confirmed in subsequent legislation. 1In that connexion, he had just
received a communication from the Austrion delegation requesting that paragraph 18 .
of the report (E/4168/Add.1) be -amended to read: "The Cowrt decree of 19 August 1826
specified that. any slave becones free as soon as he enters Austrian territory or
boards an Austrian ship or is transierred, for whatever reason, as a slave tc an
Austrian national. The same provisions are also applicable in respect of prisoners
of war who are treated as slaves by the belligerent by whom they are captured.".-‘
More than one country had a provision in its legislation to the effect that a slave -
who -set. his foot upon the territory of that State automatically became a free man.
He wondered .whether such a provision could not be included in the legal system of
every State Member of the United Nations.

Questions II and III dealt with the existence, or absence, of slavery or
any institution or practice similar to slavery in the territory\of the State. The
slavery in question was that defined at the beginning of the questionnaire. Many
answers. had been recelved to those questions indicating,; for the most part,. the :
complete -absence of sla,ery or similar practices. Cageful perusal of tlie:-answers
showedy however, that vestiges of slavery still existed-and the fact that.forty-or.
fifty States Members of the United Nations had not replied meant that no:definite'wf
opinion -could be given on the matter.. R O T,

. Questions IV, V and VI concerned various aspects of the traffic in-slaves -or:in
versons of :servile 'status and asked whether the laws -~ where they.existed —.. - ..
prohibitinglthoééapractices were rigorously applied or whether,oo'the.centnanyt suohf,
practices existed.in fact, being prohibited only in;theer?-AMany¢$ta§es_had~replied;k
some in full detail, to those questions. Some said, however, that as slavery did
not exist, no reply was necessary. In other words, crime was to be legally ' -
prohibited only if committed, a principle many legal authorities would hardly;admit.-}"



E/AC /SR 534
,”page 6

o . ‘Question: VII. related to warships which, under the provisions of article 22 of .
" the 1958 Convention on the High Seas, boarded on the high seas a merchant ship"
suspected :of belng engaged~1n the slave trade. According to the answers received,
no naval Power, ‘great or small, had had to apply that article.
| ‘ Question VIII enquired about the existence in the country of any particular
authorities responsible for combating slavery, the slave trade, or practices similar
to slavery. . Nearly all answers to that question stated that there was no particular
\‘authority responsible for suppressing slavery, the crdinary police and legal
authorities having jurisdiction in thatmatter as‘in-the case of other crimes., It
"seeme&,(howeVer, that some States considered that once slavery had been abolished
- and legally outlawed in a country, a special ‘authority responsible for the
{~repression of slavery should be established. The Sudan, for instance, menticned
. fpara. 1164) that a special department for the repression of slavery had functioned
ebfrom 1898 until 1921, when slavery had been completely eliminated, after which date
eﬁﬁhe‘question became the responsibility of the ordinary Sudanese police force. That
” examp1e'seemed.toaindicate'that'it was essential to establish such authorities after
_f'théﬂlegal abolition of: slavery. in erder to ensure ‘effective application of the law.
'-Othef*cduntries had recently abolished slavery and might usefully have followed the.
:,example»Of:the Sudany unfortunateiy, none of them had answered that question.
= Most of the'answefs to queetion IX, which asked whether there existed in the
¥5ceuhtry econoiic, social, historical or other causes which might constitute an
ffobstacle to' the elimination of slavery, were in the rnegative.-.
" . Eion X asked what educatiomsl or other measures had been, or were being,
ffﬁtaken~to stimulate public awareness of the necessity and impcrtance of eliminating
'i\ slavery and allied practiées. - The . purpose of the question was to determine whether
'f;anythlng was belng done - to educate publlc opinion. The answers showed that very
5!11ttle was’ belng done. Three of the more helpful answers might be mentioned: the

iiﬂhltedelngdom's effort to educate public opinion dated back to the early nineteenth

énturyﬁand men like William Wilberforce; Mali's answer referred to the political
;actlon undertaken to inform and educate the masses; and Australia's answer stated
jthat publlc -awareness of slavery was maintained with the help of United Nations

fPubllcatlons, general educatlon and some non-governmental organizations.




E/AC. 7/SR.534
page 7

Question XI had supplied the opportunity of asking States Members whether thelr
Governments had ratified the Geneva Convention of 1926 and the Supplementary
Convention of 1956. Most of the States Members which had answered the questlonnalre
had also answered that questlon. 'The majority said that théy had acneded to both
Conventions, or that the process of ratification was almost complete. Some replles
indicated, however, that the,Government, which had recently gained independence'had
inherited from the colénial powér many conventions,'which had‘to.betexamined and
studied before the process of ratification could take its ‘course. ~ Venezuela had
said that 1t had not ratlfled elther Conventlon because they did. not go far enovgh
in their condemnatlon of all aspecvs of slavery, natlonal measures went far beyond
both Conventlonso' ’ '

Questlons XII XIII and XIV were of considerable Jmportance because tbey formed

s

oA

the b351s of the suggestlons for p0351ble action by the United Natlons contained in
chaptcr III (E/4l68/Add 3) of the report. In resolution 1077 (XXXIX) the Coun011
had requesned the Special Rapporteur to continue his work, to submit a final report\'i
to the Coudcil ‘at its'forty-firsf sessibn’and to include‘in tbat‘report sugéesficns

for poss1ble Unlted N

ations action on’ the questlon of slavery. He had de01ded uhat,
in cax“yvng out h1s mandate, he should be gulded by the oplnlons of States Members, as '
ewprensed in thelr answers to the questlonnalre, as well as by any adv1ce he mlght '
receive From norm- governmental organlzatlons in consultative status.’

Q‘eSuson kII asked what measures could usefully be taken at the 1nternatlonal
level to comoat slavery, the slave trade and 1nst1tutlons and practlces s1m11ar to slavery,
and questlon XITI asked what Jegal, technlcal, admlnlstrablve, flnanc1al or other '
assistance or c0woperat10n would be deslrable 1n ellmlnatlng orxeduc1ng condltlons
conducive to slavery and whether such ass1stance or co-operatlon should be rendered
under the auspices of the United Nations and the spe01a11zed agen01es. Questlon XIV
concerned nnuelratnonal nonugovernmental organlzatlons and the part they could play
in combablng and ellmlnatlng slavery, the slave trade and practlces 51m11ar to:“
slavery. o o ’ ' :

Since uh suggesc1ons 1n chapter III of the report “were already in summary form,
it was 1rp0us1ble to summarlze them further. . He would, therefore, merely urge members”
to = udy that part of the report w1th partlcular attentlon. In paragraph 78, he had
"ubmﬂtueu a draft resolutlon coverlng some of the maln suggestlons. He had done that
in order to assist any dxaftlng commlttee whlch the Council might appoint, whlch could

accept, amend or reject the draft.



EB/AC.7/SR.53H
~ page 8

Hé‘thanked the Council for the trust it had placed in him and paid tribute
to the members of ‘the Division of Human Rights.
Questlon Xv, whlch merely said any further information relating to slavery or
practlces similar to slavery would be gratefully received, had produced no remarks
) worth recording apart from the United States reply, which had been received too late
to be included in chapter III and which merited special mention. In conclusion
therafore, he wished to quote that reply (E/4168/Add.4).
Mr. DELISLE (Canada) said he was glad to see the representative of Peru
as Chairman of the Committee. He regarded that as a guarantee of success in its
~ work. ' 'He'was also pleased to welcome the new Director of the Division of Human
. Rights, Mr. Schreiber, whose competence and wide expcrience were well known. He paid
a tribute to the work of Mr. Humphrey, the former Director of the Division, who in
Aprll had resumed his former: unlver31tv career after playing a distinguished role in
_the United Nations.
" The Canadian’ delegation commended the honesty, impartiality and intelligence
with which Mr. Mohamed Awad had carried cut the mission entrusted to him some years
ﬁreviously. He had spared neither his time nor his energy, and it could only be a
- matter for regret that he had not received all the co-operation he might have expected,
- since a large number of Governments had failed to reply to the questionnaire submitted
' to then.
The Commlttee thus had at its disposal a valuable catalogue of practices similar
to slavery or connected with slavery in one way or another which still existed in
- certain parts of the world.  Like the Special Rapporteur, he noted what the Government
l‘of,Léosfhadfto say about procuring - a particularly insidious and very widespread
- form of slavery which only international collaboration could in the iohg run eliminate.
. Notéworthyvamong the Special Rapporteur's recommendations was the point conéerning
 ﬁhé organizatibn of regional seminars on slavery, whic¢h could lead to the establishment
‘of a kind of reglonal criminal police whose task would be to combat the traffic in
“women for the purpose of prostitution. His delegation likewise endorsed the idea of
jisettlng up a-comm;ttee of experts on slavefy whose general function would be to
:‘éssiét the Council in its struggle'td abolish slavery or practices similar to slavery.
.waeVer,‘sinCé7that proposal had financial implications, the Secretary-General would '

~ahgve;to SQbmit an estimate of expenditure to the Committee..

1 e <,
et o



B/AC.7/SR. 534
page 9 coele 4

Mrs. MANTZOULINOS (Greece) said she appreciated the privilege of working

under thejchairman's able direction. - She welcomed the new Director of the Division
of Humen Rights, whose competence in legal matters, culture and character the, Greek
delegation had frequently had occasion to appreciate. ' She also paid .a tribute to

his predecessor; who had retired. after working devotedly and effectively for the
cause of human rights.

The Special Rapporteur had provided the Coun01l with an exhaustive study and
very valuable recommendations. The Greek Government unreservedly associated 1tse1f
with the international action undertaken to abolish slavery; which was a flagrant
affront to human dignity. The League of Nations.had takeﬁ.fhé initiati%e in
introducing steps designed to eliminate the  scourge of slavery, and the United
Nations, -which was responsible for safeguarding and protecting fundamental freedoms,
must do all in its power to eliminate slavery and similar practices. still existing
in certain parts of the world. -

Having ratified the International.Slavery.Convention‘of 1926? the Greek
Parliament had recently enacted a law ratifying the 1956 Supplementary Convention
on Slavery.. The abolition of slavery was fully in 1ine with the provision§ of the
Greek Constitution and.concept of public policy. _ _

Chapter III of the report contained. constructive suggestions from Governments
and non-governmental organizationg as well as the draft resolution submitted by the
Special Rapporteur. In its opérat%ve part, the draft resolution proposed sound ‘
realistic action such as the establishmént of a committee of ﬁxperts on'slavery, the
organization of regional seminars on slavery, and.the 1nclu81on of the questlon of
slavery in the agenda of the International Con! erence on Human nghtwa The draft
also proposed the widest possible dlSt ribution for the 5pe01a1 Rapporﬁeur's report._
The Greek delegation:supported all those measurcs and would also support any amendments
likely to strengthen and supplement the United Natlons'efforts to abollsh slavery..

;, At the same. time,-the Greek delegation would welcome the 1nsert10n 1n the ."
preamble of an additional paragraph stressing the major contrlbutlon of the
specialized agencies and the non-governmental organizations to thé struggle aga:nst
slavery. It would also like to have an additional peragraph inserted in the
operative part whereby the Council would invite the specialized agencies, non-
governmental organizations and inter-governmental organizations to continue their

action for the abolition of slavery.



E/AC. 7/SR.534
page 10

‘+ . Mr, UY:(Philippines)welcomed the new Director. of . the Division of
Eaman: Rights, who was néw taking up - the task begun by his predecessor, and wished
him every success in his new. duties. ; ! . . '

He congratulated the Special Rapporteur on'his excellent report. Thec
Government of the Philippines had acceded to the 1962 Convention-and. the Supple@
mentary Convention of 1956. Phlllpplne legislation punlshed slavery and.
prac¢tices associated therewith. - He reserved the right to- submlt mors detailed
comments at a later date on the report and the draft resolution it contained. .

- Miss LUNSINGH-MEIJER (Luexmbourg) associated herselfi with'the good
wishes extended to the new Director of the Division of Human Rights:-she was
sure that the Committée's Work‘would'bensfit greatly by his competence.

The interesting report by the Special Rapporteur was a valuable source of . -
information and provided an over-all picture of the.position with regard to
slavery, the traffic in human beings and similar institutions and practices :'-
throughout the world. Many Governments had replied to the very fiill
~ questionnaire prepared by the Special Rapporteur, and had made suggestions
concerning governmental of non-governmental action -that might be: taken at. .
different levels to combat and eliminate slavery in'its various forms. '~ The .
| suggestions made by non—governmental organlzatlons competent in that field were
lllkew1se of interest. T '

“The replles Peceived showed that the de facto gituation did not always' reflect

."ﬁhc de ;ure situation, Legislative -and admlnlstratlve action must be taken,

but it was not nnough, deepIy—rdoted practices had to -be combated; and the .= -
5 economic and socisl structure of" communltles still afflicted by the evil of -
'slavery had ‘to be transformed radlcally ‘The important thing was to' eliminate -

7b‘the ‘conditions conducive to such practlces. The developrient aid programmes

{‘ implemented under United ‘Nations ausplces could make a valuable contribution
" towards uhat end. Nor should the part whlch non-governmentul organ;zat:ons might
lay be underestlmated. SER e C LT R ‘ ‘

T




E/AC.7/SR, 534
page 11 ‘

The: Special Rapporteur had donc useful work by gathering so much information and
making suggestions concerning the action to be taken. She -supported his proposal
for the establishmént of  a committee of experts which would underline the Organiza-
tions's concern with the elimination of slavery. Such a committce should have ‘ot .
more than seven members and should be set up-for two or three years only, on a trial

‘basis. She supported the draft resolution in principle, subject to any other

suggestions that might be forthcoming during the debate. .

| Mr. CHAND (India) .joined in the congratulations offcred to the Chairman and -
the new Director of the Division of Human Rights, und expressed appreciation of the
immense amount of work which had gone'ihto Mr. Mohamed Awad's report. India had been
a party-to-the 1926 Convention and the Suppleméﬁtary Convention of 1956, and had always
taken part in any action designed to restore human dignity throughout the world.
Article 23 of its Constitution deno nced slavery in all its forms and the penél code
severely punished similar practices. India had abolished the last wvestiges of forced
labour which had pcrsisted in tribal areas. It was ready to co-operate in any action
which the Committee might take along the lines indicated by the Special Rapporteur.

He supported in principle the draft resolution contained in Addendum 3..

g Mrs. KASTALSKAYA (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said her delegation

lwas convinced that under the chairmanship of Mr. Fernandini the Committee would carry

’out its work efficiently; she welcomed the appointment of Mr. Schreiber as Director of

the Division of Human Rights. The delegation of the USSR likewise thanked the

Special Rapporteur for his very full report, for it attached great importance to

international co-operation with a vicw to abolishing slavery and :all similar practicess
It should be remembered, however, that slavery was not limited exclusively to

the facts mentioned in the roport. Apdartheid and certain forms of colonial -& Wi

explolfatlon still to be found in South Africa and in the territories admlnlstered cinn

by Portugal constituted perhaps one of the most insidious forms of slavery with

which the United Nations had to contend. 5 L
The Soviet Union delegation supported in principle the conclusions and

suggestions of the Special Rapporteur; but it had certain reservations to make-as to

the eStablishment of a committee of experts, for it feared that such a step, while

contributing very little to the rabolition of slavery, would mean'an additional

financial burden for the United Nations. The struggle against slavery and similar

pfactices was part of the work programme of the Council and of the Commission on Human

Rights, and it was hardly likely that a new committee of experts would be able to

take really positive action in that field.



“E/AC.7/SR.534 «
page 12 EE

By the. same token, the proposal to organize a series of regional seminars on
slavery at the headquarters of each of the regional cconomic commissioas did,not . S
seem very sensible, for slavery. was not characteristic oﬁ all.parts of.thevworld.

The regional commissions already had too many problems to solve to be able to give
high priority to the slavery question. Moreover, as the resources availablevfor
organizing seminars were very limited, the financial implications should 21so be
taken into consideration. In the opinion of her delegation it would suffice to_“
organize & single seminar in the only part.of the world where slavery could still
be considered a real scourge.. In any case, her delegation noted that there had
already. been many studies on slavery and it was t1me that concrete action was taken -
in the social, economic-and legislative fields. Concrete action by each country, B
and the results of such action mere more important than any purely theoretical 7
international activity, including the organization of seminars or the establishment -
of groups of experts. . |

Sir Samuel HOARE. (Unlted Klngdom) congratulated, the Chalrman of the

' Committee and welcomed the new Director of the D1v1olon of Human nghts.

The United Kingdom delegation thanked the Sneelal Rapporteur for the immense task
he had accomplished, to which the report before the Committee bore witness. The
Council had-already had the slavery question before it for several yoars. $lt“had
at first tried to cbtain the co-operation of Member States by encouraglng them to |
ratlfy the 1926 Convention on. .Slavery and the. Supplementary Convention of 1956. The :,
results had hardly been encouraging, and a second dfort had not ‘been appre01ab1y more
frultful. “.That was why the Council had decided, at the proposal of the Unlted _ "
Klngdom, ‘to, request. that a Special Rapporteur on Slavcry be de51gnated. The report
before the Committee proved how .wise that decision had been, for 1t contalned very
full information on the institutions or practices 51m11ar to slavery stlll ex1st1ng ‘

_n the world., T S e .

As to the USSR delegatlon's remark concernlng apartheld and ra01a1 dlscrlmlnatlon,

- those questlons could be- dlscussed by the Counc1l when 1tems 21 and 2# of the agenda .

k‘vwere dealt with.  He considered, moreover, that the Comm1551on on Human nghts. whlch

P

»twas already overloaded w1th _work, could not, take up, the questlon of slavery 50 as to

make recommendatlons for action on. the part of the Coun011 at 1ts forty-thlrd se351on."




E/AC.7/SR.534 -
page 13

The United Klngdom delegatlon approved in principle the measures envisaged 1n S
the' draft resolutlon proposed by the Rapporteur, and above all the suggestion for thﬁ .f
establishment of & Gommittee of experts - which 1n 1ts oplnlon should not number more
than seven, as had been rlghtly urged by the delegatlon of Luxemburg. The Council
was not equlpped to follow closely the development of that problem. and the committee
of experts wotild be able to fulfll that function as a consultatlve organ. There was no
questlon of empowerlng the new body to institute 1nqu1r1es 1n Member States or to brlng
charges against them. Its essentlal task would be that of review1ng all the 1nformatlon
avallable to the United Natlons and suggestlng posslble action by .the Councll. He had
doubts, however, about the proposal that the commlttee of experts mlght itself appoint T
experts oF set up sub-committees, and certain other prOposals in the draft resolutlon
might be examined more carefully espa c1ally that on the organlzatlon of seminars. The
Special Rapporteur had hlmself recognized that up to the presen+ no Government had
offered to be host to 'a seminar in its terr;tory, and that ralsed doubt as to wnether
it would really be possible to act upon that proposal

‘ " Mr, NABAVI (Iran) of fered sincere congratulatlons %0 the Chair:an and
‘expressed satlsfactlon at the appointment of Mr, Schrelber as Dlrector of the Human
Rights Division. . _

The Iranlan delevatlon approved in pr1n01ple ‘the suggestlons and proposals submltted .
by the Speclal Rapporteur, espe01ally that concerning the establlshment of a comnittee
of experts on slavery. But that questlon had already been studled repeatedly, and it
was 1eg1t1mate to’ ashvwhether the time had nct come to take concrete actlon Gn the varlous_
proposals made on the subgect Thus, the Iranlan delegatlon shared to some extent the E
opinion expressed by “the representatlve of the Soviet Unlon, and would welcome further R
details from the Special Rapporteur concerning the terms of reference of the commlttee
of e”perts.—t The commlttee would apparently have two separate ‘tasks: to contlnue the e
studies on slavery, an operatlon whlch d1d not; seem to call for the establishment of a _f 2
new body, and, to propose varlous 1n ernat1a1al measures. It was on the latter point
that’ add1t10na1 information would be useful '

oA
W



E/AG 7/5R. 534
‘page 14 .

His delegation approved of the Special Rapporteur's suggestion for the establish-
ment of a drafting coxrm.tten= whose members would be appointed by the Chairman and whose
;task would be. to prepare a draft resolution for submission to the Council. He might
ﬁrevezt to that questlon at a later stage in the debate.

. M. Mr. NATK (Pak sxan) joined in.the trlbute paid to the¢ new Chairman of the
1 Gommlttee, whe had rightly empha31zed the 1mportanoe of the Committee's work. He also
welcomed the new Dlrector of the Division of Human Rights.

The study submitted by the Special Rapporteur was an extremely valuable body of .
1nfo"matlon. It seemed unnecessary to reiterate his Government!s reply to the
',questlonnalre: siavery had never existed in Pakistan, which had ratified the 1926
Convention and the Supplementary Convention of 1956, as well as the ILO Conventions.

.on 1?‘cz»rced Labour,

lhe Speclal Rapporteur atulbuted the fact that a number cf countries had not
~replied. to questions XII, XIII and XIV of the questionaire te a misunderstanding. The
reason why his country had not done so was becduse slavery had never existed in
Pakistan and it would therefore be presumptuous to propose measures aimed at eliminating
" euch practlces ;n areas where it might stlll persist. That certainly did not mean that
-nis country took no interest in the questlon, the Government of Pakistan would support
'?anv measure aimed at finally eradicating slavery.

Before maklng a final decision to support the Speclal Rapporteur‘s proposals, whlch
were based for the most part on suggestions made by Govermments in their replies, the
‘Pakl tan delegatlon wished to hear the explanations requested by seweral representatives,
,'especlally the representative of Iran, concerning the terms of reference of the proposed
:commlttee of experts. In hlS oplnlon, the commlttee of experts should have only
ficonsultatlve functions, as the United Klngdom representatlve had suggested.
S Mr. EIMENDORF (United States of America) welcomed the prospect of working
f’in close co-operation with the Chalrman and with the new Director of the Division of
thmar nghts. He was pleased to have the flnal report of the Special Rapporteur and he
anoted with satisfaction that Mr. Awad would continde to take part in the Unlted Nations
duork on human rights, since he had just been‘elected a member of the Sub~Commission on
ﬂPrevention of Discrimination and Protection of Minorities.
d“‘ ‘The quality of the replies to the questionaire varied greatly from one country to
;énpther.  However, they had increased enough in number to enable the Gommittee to

-complete action on the item at the present session.



B A RETL gt

E/AC.7T/SR.534 " L
page 1%

The United Stdtes delegation was grateful to the ‘Special Rapporteur for having
drawn the Committee's attention to the suggestions made by its Government in reply
to -question XV. He had in mind, abo¥e all, the remark that it would be useful -for
the Secretary-General to consider certair spheres where Msmber States might be provided
with aid. . Non-governmental organizations should be able to collaborate in the

activities undertaken by the Secretery-General.
| With regard to thepmoposal to establish a committee of experts on slavery, the
United States delegation thought that the Council was not in.a position. to underteke a
further task in that field. A ‘number of subsidiary organs-were already concerned with
questions relating to the protection of human rights and the work programme of the.
Council was already heavy. It was in.that connexion that the Costa Rican proposal for
the appointment of a High Commissioner for Human Rights took on its full significance:
rather than multiply the procedurss and difficulties, it would be desirable to bring the
different questions connected with the practice of slavery before bodies already in
existence or whose establishment had been proposed.
It was important to keep very clearly in mind the fact that total eradication of
- slavery could only be achieved through the econoﬁic and social development of the
kcountrieS»in which it persisted. Law and law-enforcement organs could only. hope to
| eliminate that evil if the over-all development of the country made its eradication -
{possible. _
| The'idea of organizing seminars was sound, but only to the extent that such a step
!could be taken within the framework of the programme of advisory services in the figld
[of human rights. In any case, a decision on that matter would be premature as long as
no country had offeréd to be host. '
Mr., BOULLET {France) associated himself with the congratulations to the
Chairmen and the new Director of the Division of Human Rights. EEE
The French delegation was grateful to the Special Rapporteur, and to the members of
the Secretariat who had helpéd him, for the document efore the Committeé, which '
contained valuable'infdrma%ion on“the legislation of numerous countries on slavery and
similar praetices. |
At the thirty-ninth session the French delegation had abstained from partidpating
3; “he discussion on that item of-the agenda becaﬁée the French version of the report
h: i been issued too late, It was pleased to note that the delay had enabled the Special
Rapporteur to produce additional documents and to compile a list of* the measures which.
the United Nations might be called upon to take in that field.



"‘VE/AG 7/SR 534
page 16

The proposal on seminars: was.sound, provided that a single experimental seminar

was organized-in the first dinstance and that the costs involved were qha?gad to;.the. ..
. funds normally provided under th@“heading-qf_advisoryrserviaes in; the field of human ..

;vights.. -The French delegation favoured in principle.the establishment of . .a committee
. of experts, ;but like the Canadian delegation it would lilke to know the financigl:
~ implications. In any case, the new body should. be kept within reasonable llmlts,

and the proposal to limit the number of.memborg to seven seemed sensible.  As

United Kingdom representative had -said, the committee of experts should only be a :.
X cqnsultat;ve.body. Its ‘task should be to furrish.information to the Council and help

‘Governments which so desired to solve any problems which arose in their countries in.
\ weonnexion, for example, with certain forms‘of slavery which it.was not always.easy to.
! eradicate, because they were so alosely interwoven with the existing social and economic
| gtructures, Thus it would.be a long-term effort, to be carried .out .above all in the
‘ lSOCiaigand,gcnnomicdsaq$qrs.\n A committee of experts: could .not initiate .such action.
?'Hdiréctly: its role should be that of an intermediary: betwecn the.Governmghts’concerqu

- and the United-Netions technical assistance bodics with a view to determining the
' ‘speciali meeds which had to be.met in that field. ., «. . .‘" .

. v. . Mrs, SCHREIBER -(Directory Division of Human nghts) thanked the various speakers
- for thelr_congratulat;ons, -He knew that‘tQ@wSecretary-General had entrusted him with
['a;fask which was both heavy and especially challenging. He would try to carry it .out
a’,ﬁpéthe.best.ef his ability, andﬁyithytheﬂupmostvquectiyity. .Those .who had paid tributes
'f:tthhe activities of his predecessor might be interested to know that. the 1attef was
' :aepgrmined to continue his activities in the field of the.protection of hﬁman’rights.

’ In the speech he had just delivered in the Council (1421st meeting) the . Secretary—.
- rlghts and which would take on a speclal 81gn1flcance in 1968, the year d951gnated by
“:the General Assembly as the International Year for Human Rights. . )
»'V,’ He wished to-assure the members .of the Commlttee that they could count on the .
iﬁ.co—operatlon of his Division, whlch would try to apply faithfully.any decisions ‘the o

Commlttee might make.

- o N [T S . e . dF L e 1,

~ The meeting rose ab-5.30 p.m.




	biton0003A04
	biton0003A05
	biton0003A06
	biton0003A07
	biton0003A08
	biton0003A09
	biton0003A10
	biton0003A11
	biton0003A12
	biton0003B01
	biton0003B02
	biton0003B03
	biton0003B04
	biton0003B05
	biton0003B06
	biton0003B07



